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CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel). .. I'd like to call to order the Council's Budget and Finance
Committee for March 29, 2005. For the record, we have Members Hokama, the
Vice-Chair, as well as Members Carroll, Johnson, Mateo, Molina, Pontanilla, and
Tavares present. Excused is Councilmember Michelle Anderson, who is not feeling well.
Members, this afternoon the intent was to continue our discussions with the various
departments, specifically this afternoon, there is going to be a slight change to the initial
schedule that we were anticipating. We will be talking with Fire now, and after Fire, we
want to thank Finance Department for making themselves available. They will be here
with us instead of Police, who had a conflict in their schedule. So they will be with us
tomorrow morning instead, Members. So this afternoon, we'll be talking with Finance
after we finish with the Department of Fire and Public Safety. The Chair apologizes. It
was something that we were unable to get out to you folks in time.
Ms. Sakamoto, do we have any people signed up to testify this afternoon?
MS. SAKAMOTO: No, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, we'll leave it open for a little while. At this time, I'd like to
recognize Budget Director Morrison for some opening comments, and also, of course,
thank Chief Kaupalolo and Deputy Chief Bal for being with us this afternoon to respond
to any questions that the body may have.
Ms. Morrison, thank you.
MS. MORRISON: Good afternoon, Mr. Chair and Members. Welcome back.
CHAIR KANE: ... (chuckle) ...
MS. MORRISON: And I, my opening comments are that the Chief and Deputy Chief are
prepared to answer your questions. They've got lots of information to share to help you
in your decision-making process as we go through the budget. And questions about it
will be directed to them today and then as we go, we'll keep responding as best we can.
Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, for Fire and Public Safety, there is a representation of an
increase of four EIP increase, three of 'em being Fire Fighter III positions on the island of
Molokai, as well as one Fire Fighter III in Prevention. Those are found in your details,
Section 6 and in your Program, Section 8. And at this time, I'll provide the Chief to
provide opening comments for us. Thank you, Chief.
MR. KAUPALOLO: No, thank you, Chair Kane, and good afternoon Members of the Budget
Committee. I hope you had a nice flight back to Maui. Thank you for the opportunity
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this afternoon to be here and discuss our '06 Budget request. It's a expansion request.
Again, reiterate, as the Chair mentioned, five . . . excuse me, three Fire Fighter III
positions for Molokai and one Fire, Fire Fighter III Fire Inspector position for Lanai.
If I could share with you the rationale behind the justification for the additional expansion
position, I'd like to do that, Chair. Thank you. The Fire Operations Program, the
Department, again, we're requesting for three Fire Fighter III positions to be stationed at
the Kaunakakai Fire Station. These positions will be assigned to the newly acquired
Wildland Hawke Extreme apparatus that was purchased for the community of Molokai.

Currently, the Kaunakakai Fire Station is equipped with a 1250 GPM Apparatus Pumper,
and it is staffed by one Captain, one Fire, one Fire Fighter III, a driver and three Fire
Fighters on a daily basis. The Wildland Hawke Extreme, which is the tanker that's, the
new tanker, does not have a Fire Fighter III assigned to this piece of equipment. When
an emergency occurs, the use of this equipment, a Fire Fighter I from Kaunakakai Station
operates this piece of equipment. So he goes on a temporary assignment to drive that
truck.
This has always been a concern on Molokai. We definitely agree that we need a
permanent Fire Fighter III assigned to this equipment and to be responsible for its
readiness, maintenance on a daily basis. This specialized piece of equipment is very
important and crucial for all fires on the island of Molokai, and it is the only source of
additional water supply at the fire.
CHAIR KANE: Chief, we'll hold it up there unless you have any additional comments for the
three Fire Fighter III positions. And we'll open it up for questions.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Thank you. I'm, I'm done.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. While I can appreciate the
Chief's comments regarding the Fire Fighter III for the tanker on Molokai, it's
specifically the Kaunakakai Fire Station, Chief, you show 12 Fire Fighter III vacancies,
so how can you come before us and ask for three more positions?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Thank you. I appreciate that comment, Councilman Hokama. In fact,
you, you are correct. Our vacancies do show that we have 12, and at the present time, we
are in the process of, of having a, a eligibility list being developed or a list to take the
exam. '" (inaudible) ... throughout the year have tried to work with the process to have
this _ _ available, and as of April 11, that, that deadline for them to apply for this test
will, will end, and then we'll begin a, probably about a month later to have them take the
exams and then ... (inaudible) ... into this position ... (inaudible) ... you know,
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working with the process to be able to ... to fill these vacancies. And once we are finally
at that point where we should be able to fill the vacancies in the next few months.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Before the last list expired recently, what was wrong with that list
for the Department to fill positions?
MR. KAUPALOLO: The ... just a second. Yeah, Councilman Hokama, the list that you're
talking about expired last year ... (inaudible) ... early stages of July try to fulfill a lot of
it with, with new positions. And, apparently, we tried to fill it or we tried to at least tried
to conduct that, and we were unable at that time because of the operations that we had in
front of us.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, those, these 12 vacancies there were authorized a while
ago and yet you're telling me the list that expired ... and maybe we can have that
verified, Mr. Chairman, when did that FireFighters III list expire because they're good
for two years, my understanding from DPS. Isn't it correct, Chief, the list?
MR. KAUPALOLO: You know, that's as my recollection I can recall. We did try to have a, I
guess the vacancies filled. The process for us to acquire a test and to go forward I think
was somewhat limited. So we were stifled by the process. Earlier-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chief, excuse me. When you say the process and the test, after the,
the person gets on the list, there's another test for him to take?
MR. KAUPALOLO: I'm sorry if I confused you on that, Councilman Hokama. No, this is the
process for us to acquire a test so the Fire Fighter lIs could take the exam. Right now,
the, the deadline we had was for the April 11 for them to-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... (inaudible) ...
MR. KAUPALOLO: Yes, for us to do this, to be able to fill the 12 positions here. The deadline
for them to apply will be on that date and then the next step is for them to take the test.
And at that point, we should be able to fill these 12 vacant positions.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm still trying to understand why from the old list none of these
positions could have been filled from a qualified list of potential Fire Fighters.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Well, from this list then, if I may try to kind of clarify this a little bit more,
there were-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Were you told not to fill the positions and that's why it stayed vacant
and that's why the list expired?
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MR. KAUPALOLO: No, that was not it, Councilman Hokama. It was merely the fact that we
did not have a chance to fill it at that point in time.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Who did not have that chance to fill it? You? Personnel?
MR. KAUPALOLO: I think it was a combination of both because the test, the deadline was
coming up and we were trying to secure a test to move it forward ... (inaudible) ... we
could secure a test and still be able to meet the deadline. That did not occur, and so we
were unable to fill the vacancy. But at that time, if I may try to draw some support in that
some of these vacancies are occurring at this point in time. And so if you look at it, we
actually did not show this much vacancy. This is the vacancy we're looking at as of
April 1st. We just promoted six Captains, so, as you know, these Captains come from the
ranks of Fire Fighter Ills. And so that's why I'm showing it, but we should be able to fill
the vacancies I'm suggesting in saying once we ... have them take the test and we should
be able to promote.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So is there any station that is consindered [sic] undermanned at this
point? Or understaffed, let me use a better acceptable term. Understaffed.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Mr. Hokama, I'm going to have Deputy Chief expound on that for you.
MR. BAL: Okay, Mr. Hokama, we balanced the, with the promotions and the transfers, we
balanced all of our staff just this morning. And there is no station running understaffed to
my knowledge.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, that's, that's very good to hear. So should you get this three,
you're asking for four Fire Fighter Ills, right?
MR. KAUPALOLO: That's correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So with this potential 16 vacancies, if we can have all 16 filled by,
through the new list. What, what's your level of-MR. KAUPALOLO: Mr. Hokama, my list ... I'm incorrect. Right now I'm going to show that
the 12 vacancies because this also includes what, what we're looking at at this, at, you
know, present time for, you know, April 1st . Should, should we get the other four
vacancies, again, the, with the Fire Fighter III test available out there, we should be able
to fill the vacancies.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: The 12 currently includes the 6 Fire Fighter III that got promoted to
Captain?
MR. KAUPALOLO: No, it's correct.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so, so, so that we can be very clear, until those positions were,
those people were promoted, you only had six vacancies?
MR. KAUPALOLO: That's correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, because I'm sure you're well aware of my patience with the
Lanai station, being the only station on one island.
MR. KAUPALOLO: I thank you, Mr. Hokama, for your patience and we certainly are trying to
move forward with the process to be able to address your concerns on Lanai.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I just wanted to ... I'm done on this, but I can ask my
question regarding the reallocation later, Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. Any further questions? Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Chief, just to continue where
Mr. Hokama, what he was asking regarding the positions. In addition to the, the
promotion of the 6, does this number also include individuals that had retired as well? So
we get a better picture of what we're actually looking at because if I'm looking at 3, 12
positions vacant now, I mean, it's kind of like aloha at this point, you know. So I'd like
to understand in addition to the promotions, what else occurred that brought this number
to 12?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Thank you very much, Councilman Hokama. I appreciate that question.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... Mateo.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Yes ... I mean, Mr. Mateo. I'm sorry. I'm still back. I apologize ...
Mr. Mateo. But I thank you for your question. Yes, that is correct. These, these
vacancies are occurrence because of retirement from personnel from the Department. In
Molokai, we had two promotions but also one retirement, so that, you know, added to our
vacancies. Also, we had a, a, I guess, a personnel leaving for, you know, personal kinds
of reasons. So those added to the number of vacancies we had.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you very much, Chief. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Further questions? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. Just so that I get it clear, the handout
that was passed out earlier noted 20 vacant positions. The position title Assistant Chief
EM -07, is that one still vacant?
MR. KAUPALOLO: That is correct, Councilman Pontanilla.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Fire Captains, one vacant?
MR. KAUPALOLO: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Fire Fighter III, 12 vacants?
MR. KAUPALOLO: That is also correct.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Fire Fighter I, 5 vacants?
MR. KAUPALOLO: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Fire Fighter Training, one ... or Training Recruit, one
vacant?
MR. KAUPALOLO: That is also correct.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: So this past year, you had lot of movements within the
Department such that all of these vacants, vacancies occurred? In other words, the
promotions, the retired Fire Fighters in the Department.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Yes, that is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So you have an on-going recruitment program to fill in
those vacancies?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Yes, if I could share with the rest of the, you know, Council Members also
is that on April 1, we'll be starting up the 23 rd Fire Fighter recruit class and that class
enrollment is with 20 Fire Fighters recruits. So that would take a, or if you look at it, the
vacancy that, that should cover it.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, so you're going to see some more movements
from Fire Fighter III to Fire Captains?
MR. KAUPALOLO: That is correct also. We have the pending also, personnel that is, is
contemplating retirement from the Department. So when we have those attritions [sic],
they do create the vacancies and then we try to fill them by promotions.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. I can see the need for the four Fire Fighter
Ills, especially the three on Molokai because of your special equipment there. You
know, one more question, Chair. In regards to, once the budget is approved, soon after
that, how soon after that do you folks go to Personnel to fill in those vacancies?
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MR. KAUPALOLO: I believe the funding we're asking for is like for eight months, so it would
give us some time to present the, and do the recruitment.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
positions?

So within four months, you should fill those four

MR. KAUPALOLO: That would be a conservative, with the process we have in front of us, I
think that would be conservative, and I only say that because the process is pretty much
something that we work within the framework of, of the Departments.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And before I recognize you, Mr. Molina, when you say
conservative, Chief, are you saying that you could probably hire them quicker or it's
going to take longer?
MR. KAUPALOLO: It might take longer. It's, the process that we need to go through that, that
sometimes is not really as conducive as, you know, what we'd like to.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. Mr., Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good afternoon, Chief.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Good afternoon.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: You know, just taking into consideration your 12 vacancies
for the Fire Fighter III positions, relating to the island of Molokai, the ball is rolling right
now for the new fire station. Do you anticipate any, a need for additional personnel after
this fiscal year once that new fire station comes on line or do we have the adequate
amount of personnel to staff the new fire station, proposed new fire station?
MR. KAUPALOLO: I thank you, Councilman Molina. That's a good question. You know, I
think at this point, we, I can probably adequately say that the personnel we have there
would probably, more than likely ... (inaudible) ... to fill that particular station that
we're proposing to build. We should be okay. Like anything else in the future, we'll,
we'll have to make that assessment as we go forward. But at this point in time, I think
we should be fine with that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions, Members? Mr. Pontanilla. I'm sorry. If
you can hang on. Member Johnson.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
I just wanted to know, I know that you've been
implementing your program that, you know, resulted from the audit. This was a while
ago, you know. So that your, is this part of your implementation program in furthering
your goals and objectives underneath that program?
MR. KAUPALOLO: If I can draw maybe a little more so I could get a better, I guess,
understanding of it. This is part of our reorg. plan, I think ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, this is part of your reorganization, but it was also part of
your effort to actually attain a higher level of efficiency and get the staff in place that you
needed in order to properly perform?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Yes, thank you, Councilperson Johnson. I appreciate that question, too.
Yes, it is. It actually allows us to be more efficient in the operations, especially in
Molokai where we have just a standalone type of a station. It's not really accessible for
us to leave manpower and equipment to Molokai to help in any kinds of fire, types of
mitigation problems there. So, certainly, yes. This is part of our plan that we want to be
more efficient and provide for the community there, as well as the visitors there. The
_ _ fire protection.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and this also appears just because of that one specific
piece of equipment. Does this also appear to be a safety issue in your opinion with regard
to the operation of the specific equipment?
MR. KAUPALOLO: That would be a real good concern, and it is one for the Department that
now we have a _ _ right in that we have the approval to fill a position that this
particular person should be able to not really do the daily maintenance, but operate the
equipment because it is a high-tech equipment. It is specialized. It takes special training.
But it also needs to have somebody there that drives it often enough so they are very
familiar with the work to operate the equipment.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, thank you very much.
MR. KAUPALOLO: You're welcome.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. Simple question. You said earlier
that it normally takes like four months to fill in a vacancy, hopefully. To your best
knowledge, you know, I know we had some vacancies this past year. How long did it
take after the budget was approved to fill in those vacancies? What I'm trying to get at is
that, yeah, we budget for eight months. What's the possibility of budgeting for six
months? Because you have all these vacancies that appears in the Department. It

9-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 29, 2005

wouldn't, it probably wouldn't take away, you know, monies from you to fill in those
vacancies.
MR. KAUPALOLO: I thank you, Councilman Pontanilla. You know, this year I think has been
more of an awkward year for us. And I just share that because of the process, yeah. I
think in the normal course of how we conduct business, I think the Chair is very correct.
Four months is really adequate time for us. But this year has been an awkward process
for us to try to make that ... (inaudible) ... within that framework four months, maybe
four and a half months. But we were able to, once we got the process, once we got the
position ... I'll give you example, like the _ _ position. Once we did that, we were
able to conduct it within two and a half months, to fill the position. So it was kind of
awkward last year, but we think the process will just get better and we'll be able to be a
better participant in it.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Okay, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Further questions on this area of the III? Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER T A V ARES: Yeah, not really a question, but I was hoping that we would
be able to send a list of all the expansion positions to Personnel Services and ask them to
tell us how long they think it will take for each of those positions to be filled, of all the
expansion positions that have been listed in the Mayor's budget.
CHAIR KANE: We can send such a communication.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you for the request, Member Tavares. Staff will take note. Any further
questions along this lines? Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. I'd like to move to the Fire Prevention Program,
Chairman, regarding the expansion position.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, and before we do that, why don't we provide the Chief an opportunity to
make his opening comments on that area, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah. So and before we move forward, any further questions on the fire
operations for Molokai, Members? Hearing none, Chief, why don't you go ahead and
provide an opening comment and then I'll recognize Mr. Hokama.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Okay, thank you, again, Chair Kane. If I can, I'd like to share with you
my opening comments on the Fire Prevention Program. Our Department is requesting for
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one Fire Fighter III, a Fire inspec ... , Inspector position in Fire Prevention. This additional
Inspector will assist the Prevention Bureau with responding to community, to the
community for fire inspection needs. Currently, we have five Fire Inspectors assigned to
the Division in our Department, and they have not been able to keep up with the required
fire inspections required by Maui County Fire Code.
The Division is taxed with the responsibility of providing the public with the annual fire
inspections of all businesses. Currently, we are not able to provide this service to our
community. We need to strive to provide fire safety education, regular inspections to
ensure that our residents and visitors are provided a safe place to live and visit. All the
expansion positions requested for ... (inaudible) ... asking for a eight-month funding.
Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, Chief, so we can understand your program better, obviously, you
have one Captain that runs the Division of Fire Prevention. Okay, and you have five Fire
Fighter Ills, which is all currently filled?
MR. KAUPALOLO: That's incorrect. We have, if you look at your Fire Fighter Ills, the 12-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... (inaudible) ...
MR. KAUPALOLO: Part of that 12, I'd say is within the 40-hour positions that we have in the
Department. And that is due, again, through attrition, the people leave the Department to
seek further opportunities, and so these create these kinds of vacancies. So that's, we had
two vacancies ... at this time.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So out of the five Fire Fighter Ills in Fire Prevention, you have two
vacancies?
MR. KAUPALOLO: That is correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: How long has this situation existed, please, Chief?
MR. KAUPALOLO: They, in fact ... maybe a month that we've had, but they had decided to
move on at least for that one vacant position ... (inaudible) ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And you, and you do not temporarily assign a Fire Fighter I
or another position to assist with Fire Prevention's needs, since you mentioned that you
are way behind--I won't say way behind, you just said that you are behind your
inspections requirements.
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MR. KAUPALOLO: Yeah, we, I guess in the past was announcing that we have some vacant
opency [sic], openings in Fire Prevention Bureau, and at that point in time, we are
anticipating that the Fire Fighter Ills in Operations that would like to work on 40-hour
positions can go ahead and apply for it. That is one avenue that's trying to fill that
particular Fire Fighter III position. The other would be for the promotional process that
we have underway at this time.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Chief, so we can understand, what is the role of the
Fire Fighter IV in this Division, between the Captain and the Fire Fighters III?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Mr. Hokama, the Fire Fighter IV is actually a lieutenant's position, and his
position actually is what is, what is known as Plans Reviewer for the Department.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So that would be Mr. English?
MR. KAUPALOLO: That's correct. That's Mr. English's position.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, can you give us an assessment of the amount of backlog your
Division has currently so we ...
MR. KAUPALOLO: There, you know ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... in perspective to your request?
MR. KAUPALOLO: ... I don't have all of the figures in front of me or, but I'll try, try to paint
a picture for you where we're at. Normally, with the five Inspectors, I believe from what
we have on KIVA at the present time, it's like about 1,800 different businesses out there .
. . which is out there. This is just one aspect of the work that they need to complete.
Besides the new construction or the new buildings that are out there, the SMA, the ...
inspections, as well as the on-going daily inspections that are necessary and these are the
annual inspections that require for the businesses. So ... (CHANGE TAPE) ... without
numbers look at maybe just about 30 percent is what we'll be able to, to, to work with at
this point in time.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: By your Division's backlog, let me say--gee, I don't even know how
to say this well. Is there a, are there situations out there with whether it be with
businesses or facilities that entertain public use in some kind of a situation where it's
difficult for them to continue to operate because of lack of inspection on a timely manner,
whether it be for insurance purposes or to get a license renewal for liquor or food
services? Are, is there a situation that's out there because Fire Prevention is not able to
do its inspections?
MR. KAUPALOLO: You know, I'll try to maybe answer it this way, Mr. Hokama. Right, right,
I think at the present time, the Prevention Bureau is very strapped with the work they
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have, and it's only because it's ever-increasing. As our population grows, so does the
demand for the services that they need to provide out there. I believe our Plans Review
person, which we just mentioned earlier, Fire Fighter IV, he is really strapped with the
work that's in front of him and that's, and, you know, also the work that he's doing now.
So he has a lot of backlog and this also reflects, I guess, also the Inspectors out there.
They also will be getting a backlog .... in there, and, more so, with the loss of personnel
in there. It just, two folds. So your answer would be, yes, that there is backlog in the
Department. How much of it, I can't really put a number for you, but there is a backlog
and unless we fill the positions or we get more help in there, the backlog will continue.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I can appreciate that, Chief. What I would like to know is, are we
putting businesses, public facilities in a situation that is untenable because of their
inability to get a fire inspection, which will impact the facility or business negatively,
whether it be, and my example was whether it be for renewal of licenses, whether it be a
liquor license or a Department of Health permit for food services because of cooking
equipment or what? Are we in a situation that's impacting those that require the
inspections?
MR. KAUPALOLO: What we have tried to do in these kinds of situations here is to try to
address those needs. Certainly, we will try to prioritize the needs as it came through, and
I think that's really because of the amount of personnel or staff that we have sometimes
available to work. And I wouldn't say that we put them in a jeopardy but we could be
better at the work to provide better services by having these kinds of request that we have
come forth before you that might help us to at least adequately try to address the
situations out there. But, in a sense, you could say that, yes, it does impact it. And but I
don't see it that it impacts it in a negative way that would be a detriment to health and
safety.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm happy to hear that, Chief. I'm happy to hear that. My other
question is, does your Fire Fighter III assist your Lieutenant in plans review if a situation
occurs that a backlog is, you know, I mean building permits are waiting for sign offs?
You know, obviously, Mr. English has a lot of work. I can appre ... , cause he's come
testified before us, as well as your Captain. Do you use your Fire Fighters III to assist
plan review?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Thank you again, Councilman Hokama. I really appreciate that question.
I think I show real true the fact that Mr. Martin and Mr. English is reall your, sometimes I
call them the unsung heroes in the Department because they work tirelessly and
endlessly, trying to provide their services. And you are correct. We, just about six
months ago, we had a fellow came in and we promoted him into the Fire Fighter III Fire
Inspector slot and as part of the so-called really reorg. in there, we have assigned him to
work with Scott English. And this is also to assist in the areas where, where Mr. English
would be on a leave of some sort, he could at least continue with some of the process
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there. So we would continue, continually try to provide that service. But that is correct.
We have assigned a Fire Fighter to work with Mr. English.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So we're clear with the new ... If I may, Chairman. I'm just
trying to get one grip on this one. Your Captain of this Division reports to a Battalion
Chief, is that correct under the new structure? Or does it, does-MR. KAUPALOLO: ... (inaudible) ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: -- report to an Assistant Chief?
MR. KAUPALOLO: The Division Chief.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
Captain in Fire Prevention?

What kind of support does the Assistant Chief give the

MR. KAUPALOLO: I thank you for that question. That's really a great question because I
know it allows us to bring forth the reorganizational plan that you folks have helped to
approve for us last year and which allowed us to separate the departments, I mean the
Divisions. It went into a Support Division, and went into a Fire Operations Division .
. . . (Inaudible) .. .in the back we had like six or seven sections that were operating under
the Deputy, and at times the, in these times ... there's a lot of responsibilities out there
for them.
In this case, the Support Services Chief now allows that point of contact to be made
where Captain Martin now can ask for that support instead of waiting in line to get to the
Deputy because there's nine other people sitting there. Now he has a direct point of
contact. He can go there, they can mitigate some or discuss issues or even address
concerns of the bill. And the Support Services Chief has been able to do that both with
the Hazmat, the Medical Officer, the Training Bureau and the Fire Prevention Bureau.
So I, you know, thank you for, you know, asking that question. I appreciate it.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Back to my question, Chief, what does the Assistant Chief provide
the Fire Captain in terms of ...
MR. KAUPALOLO: Specifically, what does he provide?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
MR. KAUPALOLO: What he provides you is actually the guidance of how the Bureau can
function efficiently in there. If there are any administrative matters that he needs to
address with him to take up with him as to the operations to make it more efficient, he
would be able to work with him on that. Or he could be able to do a direct face-to-face
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contact to help him with the daily operations of the Bureau. He does not get into the
actual inspections. He actually is there to help to provide directions, to provide support
to develop and ... with them the direction for the Bureau and to support the operations
on a day-to-day basis.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So he should be the one fighting with DPS to get those vacancies
filled then?
MR. KAUPALOLO: I would concur.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: What level of use regarding premium pay has been your requirement
for Fire Prevention? Have you expended all your allocation? You've gone beyond your
allocation to try and catch up? You do not authorize overtime or ...
MR. KAUPALOLO: Yeah, we have I think budgeted for it right now, we are pretty much, have
spent pretty much all of it if not and the kinds of activities they do I think you pretty
much have seen them out in the public and these are the overtime work that they're out
there also doing. And also inspections for the different businesses or, you know, _ _
that need to go. A lot of it, I would say would be for our community functions out there.
Keiki IDs, attending school, school fairs ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
overtime pay?

So you basically utilize your whole request for premIUm pay,

MR. KAUPALOLO: We pretty much try to, yes, use that to run some, provide the services for
the, for the community.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Last question as regards to this because you have a special
revolving fund under your Plan Reviews Program, okay. By your ability of your
Lieutenant in Plans Review to process the building permit request, the more you can
process and review, obviously, you get more money into your special fund that should be
able to help pay for your inspections, as the Code is written in Chapter 16. So, my
question to you is, how have you approached it, knowing that your special fund is
dependent upon your Plan Reviews Program?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Mr. Hokama, can you just clarify that a little bit more for me, please.
Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You have a special revolving fund, okay. In the budget, it shows
you're going to get an approximate $107,000 more, whereby you have a balance of
almost $461,000 in your Fire Plan Review Permit and Inspection Revolving Fund. So
my question is, if you're giving your right components the support, it's going to help you
fund those kind of areas that can help you. Also have us look at whether or not we want
to use these monies to help entertain the payment of this positions of your expansion

- 15 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 29, 2005

request. So how have you approached it? If you're not giving your Planning people
support, you're not going to increase your ability to get more money in your fund.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Mr. Hokama, if I understand your question correct, we, are, believe are, I
wouldn't say in the process, but we are trying to have that ability to do that. I, to my
understanding, I was, I'm not very sure that that we will deal with that, with that
particular process to do that. But we are working towards that. If that is available for us
and that venue is there, that, yes, I concur with you. Yes, we'd want to do that on there.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
consideration?

Have your approached the Budget office with that option for

MR. KAUPALOLO: We have approached the prior Budget office on this and had discussions
with it and ... discussion was for us to be able to have that venue and how to go about it
and in a timeframe on when that could happen.
CHAIR KANE: Excuse me, Mr. Hokama, I'd like to provide other opportunities ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I'm, I'm done, Chairman. I thank you for allowing me to get
into it, detail. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chairman. First of all, I want to thank the
departments and Budget Director Morrison for these job descriptions. I think they're real
helpful. They help answer a lot of questions and also spur us to ask other questions, so I
had about ten questions on this one item. Just kidding, only one. One for clarification.
You know the expansion position for this Fire Prevention area, does this include, as far as
the job duties, does this include also brush and weed abatement because you had
concerns from people calling up with lots that have all this weeds and everything else
growing? So does this position, will this help, too, as far as cite landowners who may be
in violation?
MR. KAUPALOLO: The job description for them includes also that, yeah. That they do go out
and do the brush abatement and mitigation work. What, what happens in the Bureau is
we try to look at the different districts and areas and assign them to go in. But they do
need to be very aware of that's part of their duties that they need to do, to do brush
abatement work.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And before I go any further, Chief, I know you have two
attachments to your handout or, Ms. Morrison, I should, maybe I should ask you or the
Chief can respond. Whoever is more appropriate. The two attachments regarding the
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position descriptions specifically break down what their duties are of, I guess the first one
would be for the ... I'll let you explain these two attachments on the back that we have.
Both of 'em are position descriptions for Fire Fighter Ills and one talks about inspecting
schools, et cetera. So that looks like your Fire Control. And then the other one is a ...
drives a pumper, so that seems to be the Fire Fighter III. So if you can just provide a
little bit more information on what the Members have in front of them and how they can
apply it to their line of questioning please.
Is this what was developed as far as for the new hiring or for the testing or to
qualifications? Give us background, please.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Thank you, Chair. From my understanding, these are actually what was
developed and this is for the position descriptions for the different class of Fire Fighter
III. And these would be the duties and, again, position description for them. It, you look
at the Fire Fighter III, again, this is a position description for them. It not only basically
allows them to, you know, operate the truck, but they need to do all of these other things,
such as be able to maintain the fire fighting equipment also for its readiness. At the same
time, be able to take, take command in situations where they become an acting officer.
So the duties that they assigned and to, you know, perform are pretty detailed in itself.
CHAIR KANE: So, Chief, the two forms that we have here, the distinction between the two is
one is for the operations program, which is the second one. And the first one is for Fire
Prevention for a Fire Fighter III position?
MR. KAUPALOLO: That is correct, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. I just needed to get the distinction with the two. Members,
further questions for the Chief? We do have somebody who has signed up to testify. I'd
like to take a moment to recognize that person, bring them forward, and then I'll ask if
there's anybody else. And if not, we'll go ahead and close up testimony, Members, for
the day. Those persons who are signing up to testify, we're going to provide you with a
total of four minutes. At three minutes, we'll let you know of that time, and we'll need
you to wrap up your comments with an additional minute. Denise Laitinen. I'm sorry if
I'm mispronouncing your name. When you come to the microphone, please state your
name for the record and if you do represent an organization. And we'll go from there.
Thank you. Ms. Laitinen .

. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MS. LAITINEN: Thank you, Chair. My name is Denise Laitinen. For the record, I am a Public
Fire and Safety Commissioner, but I'm here today in my capacity as the Firewise
Coordinator, which is a wildfire safety outreach program. And I work with, not only this
Prevention Department, but with the prevention departments all over the State. And I'm
here today to ask the Council Members to seriously consider the Department's request for
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the additional position within Prevention because it is desperately needed. As you know,
there are five Fire Fighter Ills in Prevention. They're now down to two positions, and of
the third, he's half-time pub-ed. So even with the additional, when they fill them, one of
them ... when they fill them back up to five, one of them is going to be helping in Plans
Review, and one of them will be helping in pub-ed. So they, even with an additional
inspector, they're still really four inspectors if you follow my math.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Laitinen, before you go any further, what is the, you're saying
HIBED [sic]. We don't understand, so can you clarify what you're referencing when you
say that word that you used.
MS. LAITINEN: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TA V ARES: Pub-ed.
MS. LAITINEN: Oh, public education, pub-ed. Sorry.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, so if you ... yeah. So, thank you. Sorry for interrupting, it's just that
you lost us when you use-MS. LAITINEN: Sorry.
CHAIR KANE: --kind of an acronym. A modified acronym. Thank you.
MS. LAITINEN: I hang around the fire guys too much. I would just like to say that the Fire
Department really needs personnel within the Prevention Department, Plans Review. As
you know, their workload is doubled. The inspections have increased dramatically with
all the new construction around, and that leaves very little time left over for prevention
outreach. And so with an additional person, we'll help bring up the level of inspections
and free up people to do more public education and prevention. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Commissioner. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank you
very much for your testimony. Is there anybody else here in the gallery that wishes to
testify? Hearing none, Members, without objections, we'll close testimony for this
afternoon.
COUNCILMEMBERS VOICE NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Let's close it up .

. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR KANE: Additional questions at this time for either, for any of the four positions that are
being requested, Members? The Chair does have a question just to follow up on one of
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the lines of questioning from Mr. Hokama. Chief, if you can, just to give us a little more
idea of the backlog in light of Ms. Laitinen's comments as well. Exactly how far
backlogged are you? And I think the question comes down to, is it so far that there is an
interruption in providing the public with their ability to move forward with, whether it's
an existing business that needs to update something? I'm just reiterating the question by
Mr. Hokama but I need you to provide us with a clear picture of how--I'll use the word,
dire it is as far as the need.
MR. KAUPALOLO: I thank you, Chair. I'll try and answer that as best that I can here. I think
we all recognize that anytime we have a short end, the workforce, that it does have that
effect on it. In terms of the Prevention Bureau, there is a shortage in there. With the
expansion I think that would help us. It would help to alleviate some of the workload as
was mentioned earlier. Even if we had a, you know, people that are not in there at this
time, once we fill the position, then we should be okay. At the present time, again, I am
very comfortable that we can provide the services, but not at the level that we have in the
past, and only because we don't have the, you know, adequate staff. But I don't believe
that it's in dire straits. I believe that we can provide it, but not at the level or the amount
that we need to . .. By prioritizing the service request, I think that allows us to be a little
more comfortable with the operation. We're not happy with it the way it is because we
don't have the manpower in there, but we also feel that we can sustain what we have.
Certainly if things start to escalate and we start to increase and we don't have that
personnel, then I think you're very correct. That we would need to take a real hard look
at what's happening with the Bureau.
CHAIR KANE:
So, Chief, when you have temporary assignment where you have
somebody ... is the movement only upward? It's a follow-up question. Assistant Chief
hierarchy now. Does the Assistant Chief, because when you explain to me, I mean, in
laymen's terms, he's not jumping in and actually looking at plans and doing the, the
actual day-to-day. It seems like he's providing, as you describe, generally the guidance
and the, you know--and please don't take offense. I'm just describing. If I'm saying it
wrong, forgive me. You know, the more pat on the back to say, eh, you know, no worry.
We here for back you up, brah, kine. Does an Assistant Chief take on, some of the actual
work if you folks recognize that it's, that the current situation is such that the backlog
needs to get actual frontline support on the, on the, in the program?
MR. KAUPALOLO: At this point in time, you know, it probably would be much prudent for us
to look at it. As I mentioned, we, the shortfall came out very, very recent. But in any
line of work that we've done in the, in the Department, the Chiefs had from time to time,
if need to be, pull in the hose and tow the line and get out there and fight fires. I think it's
no different when we work in Support Services. If that needs to come about, I think we'll
make the decision to go in and work with them until we can kind of manage it so it is,
you know, adequate. But at this point in time, if you're looking at the reorganization that
we have, that's pretty much the work that he is. Not to limit his work, that there's other
related duties that we can. And in this particular case, the individual that is a Support
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Services had a number of years in the Prevention Bureau, so we would be able to provide,
if need be, that kind of assistance.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Chief. And the Chair apologizes for asking the question, but for me
it needed to be asked and heard from you folks that the people in the Fire Department are
willing to get in there and, you know, gotta do what you gotta do sometimes. So thank
you for saying that. Any further questions, Members, for Chief or Deputy Chief with
respects to the expansion positions? Member Hokama, I know you had some additional
comments. Please feel free to move, to move on them.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chief, let me ask you one question, since you, you have reallocated
one of your Assistant Chief's position to a Fire Command position from the
Administration program. Can you give us some comment, please, you or the Deputy?
MR. KAUPALOLO: I believe, Mr. Hokama, the position that we are talking about is the EM-3
position, which is the Fire Command Officer and that is the position for the Strategic
Plans for the Department. That particular position there is actually, is the point of contact
to develop and continue the strategic planning for the Department.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so he has nothing to do with response to call-outs or anything
like your top operational guy in the field then?
MR. KAUPALOLO: You mean ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And, again, I just ask because by title, you know, you know you say
Fire Command Chief.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And, you know, I'm asking you to help us understand the role of the
position.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Correct, and we were trying to find, I guess, the title that would be most
fitting in both roles because he may be called upon to do command work. And so the, the
title there, we try to look at it that would also be able to allow him to do that if the
demand was necessary or he was called to do that function.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So by your reallocation--and, again, we brought it before
other departments, Chief, so, you know, it's not just your Department--but, actually, your
request is to have a Fire Command Chief expansion because what you really had was an
Assistant Chief. But you're asking for another ... you have a vacancy now in Assistant
Chief, right? So you want to fill another Assistant Chief position?
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MR. KAUPALOLO: I'm not sure I follow on that. This is my understanding that when we did
the reorg. we had two Division Chiefs. The EM-03 position that was in Operations
portion of our budget, we merely brought him into the most appropriate program, which
is Administration because of the work that he's charged to do with and that is managing
the Strategic Plans for the Department and other duties.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so your vacancy of one of your Assistant Chief's EM-07
position is in your Administration, but it is a current position?
MR. KAUPALOLO: It is a, the Assistant Chief position, the EM-07 is a current position now.
We have not been able to fill that position at this point in time, but we will be filling it.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, and you took your EM-03 Fire Command Chief position from
your ... where did you take that from, Mr. Fire Chief? Where did you allocate it from?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Actually ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Your front, your ...
MR. KAUPALOLO: The battalion . . . EM-03 was a Battalion Chief, we, that was in
Operations, and his original position was to manage the Strategic Plan. What we did was
simply move him and give him a title that was more conducive to the application of work
we had for him and put him in the appropriate program, instead of in Operations because
he was managing the Strategic Plan, we placed him in the Administration program.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, I understand that. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: And before we go any further, the Chair's aware of the time. We were
scheduled to go to 3:00; however, the Chair was also aware that because we're in Kahului
this evening, there is some, there's some room, some wiggle room, so to speak. I'd like
to, at this time, if there's any specific questions regarding the EIP expansion, I'd like, I'll
entertain that now. If not, if there's other questions, please, we'd like to at this time ask
you to provide your questions in writing to the staff and that way Chief and Deputy Chief
can have some adequate time to respond in writing to any of the questions that you might
have in this area. Members, do you have any objections to the direction that the Chair
would like to take us at this time?
Any further questions on the four EIP count request for the expansions? Hearing none,
Members, also Chair does recognize that the budget ordinance and program do not match
the details as far as numbers. And if you would allow staff to work with the Budget
Director in making, getting that clear, the Chair would appreciate that opportunity to have
that accomplished. Ms. Morrison, thank you for working with the staff. Okay, Members,
final chance. Any additional questions, and, if not, we'll go ahead and get those in
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wntmg. Please submit to the staff and we'll make sure we'll get those questions out to
the Chief. Chief, thank you very much, yeah, for your time this afternoon.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Chair, thank you very much for the opportunity and those of the Budget
Committee. Appreciate your time. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, and thank you, Deputy.
afternoon.

Thank you for your time here this

CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, we're just going to take a very ... (CHANGE TAPE) ...
departments. Chair is going to call a recess. We'll reconvene right before 2:40. Thank
you ... (gavel) . ..

RECESS:

2:36 p.m.

RECONVENE:

2:42 p.m.

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel) . .. Members, this is March 29, Budget and Finance Committee
meeting. With us this afternoon, we have the Department of Finance with Director
Young, as well as resource personnel. And including we have, Mr. Gary Gates gracing
the presence of this Chambers this afternoon, and Mr. Lito Vila also from the
Department. Ms. Morrison, any opening comments in this case? No? We'll go ahead
and yield the floor over to Mr. Young.
Members, for your review, you have a March 29 th document from Ms. Morrison, and it
gives you a breakdown of the expansion positions requested in the budget for the
Department of Finance. Director Young, if you can maybe provide some opening
comments and then you can go right into utilizing this document for, for us to follow with
you.
MR. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good afternoon. Good afternoon, Members. For your
benefit, I provided a general overview of the seven--I'm sorry the, correction--the nine
County-funded positions that the Department of Finance is seeking in the FY '06 Budget.
The handout that I provided includes a brief description of each position, as well as some
statistics in the final, final two pages of the Appendix section.
The nine positions requested represents an increase in salaries of about $166,832. And
another $37,500 in related operational equipment. They're spread over three specific
Divisions of the five within the Finance Department, or six including the Director's
Office. And there's an additional four positions that are sought or, for your information,
that will be sought through State grant funds. The three Divisions in questions include
the Administration, which is the Office of the Finance Director. We're seeking one
additional expansion position, that of an Asset Property Manager function. In the Risk
Management Division, we are seeking one additional expansion position, that of a Safety
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Specialist. And in Division of Motor Vehicles and Licensing, we are seeking seven
County-funded expansion positions and that is also where the four additional State grant
fund positions will be sought for as well.
I'd like to yield to the discretion of the Chair in how, in terms of our future discussion of
each positions if you'd like me to discuss the posi ... , the specific positions individually.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. And before I allow you to proceed, Members, as with the
Fire Department, if you would allow staff to work with the Budget Director, the budget
ordinance--excuse me. I'm sorry. It does match, so we don't have any work there. So,
yeah, Director, why don't you go ahead and step through. We'll start with the Asset
Property Manager, and then we'll just work right through what you had presented to us
and provide the Members with opportunity after each Division to have a discussion.
MR. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The Asset Property Manager is a position that is sought
to be placed in the Office of the Finance Director. This position is necessary because
initially when I took the position of Finance Director back in September of 2004, it was
very apparent to me that there was some severe lack in the County in terms of
monitoring, coordinating, tracking of the hundreds of County leases, and, on occasion,
the grant of lease of County properties where the County is either the lessor or the lessee.
There has been situations that I've observed in where performance items in contracts are
either not necessarily followed up on or known. Currently, the, these grants or leases are
actually managed by the Grant Managing Department or by the leasing department. The
Finance Department does not have anyone on staff with specific skill sets or specific
function identified for the management or observation of leases. This is a deficiency that
I seek to correct with the position of an Asset Property Manager.
I also state that given the consideration of One Main Plaza, the level of importance of this
position will be paramount. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Questions, Members? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comments, Director Young. Currently, you just,
I guess you haven't been able to classify the position yet, but I would assume a general,
you know, two-thirds _ of your 19 plus thousand, you're looking at something about
one SR-19 for this position?
MR. YOUNG: Yes, Mr. Hokama. Based on, well, the reason why it's not classified yet is
because we haven't undergone the process to get it leveled at DPS. And also we've
undertaken the process internally within our Department to identify comparable positions
within the County, the State and other jurisdictions. There are not any positions that are,
say, exactly comparable, but functional skills relative to what we would consider in other
like positions, this position is actually currently leveled at a, anywhere from an SR 16 to
18.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you for that comment. You have your experience in
private sector like some of us. At this point in time, this option of fulfilling the
requirements of asset management, it is your opinion that this would be a better venue for
us than a third party property manager, management firm to do the work for us, Mr.
Young?
MR. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Actually, this position, this one single position is, will
have to work, I believe in conjunction with any opportunities for a third party property
manager. A liken the example of One Main Plaza, for instance. This position or any
other that currently exists within the County would not be sufficient to actually be the
on-site commonly known what people would normally think of as a property manager for
a commercial building. This position does not get to that level of function of detail. So I
would envision that this person would have to essentially work with the third party
property manager. The County should be contracting with a third party property
manager. And this position just further adds or complements the internal skills in the
County to be able to coordinate the requirements of that property manager.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Currently, with what your Department is responsible,
currently is responsible, and it's a lot by the Charter that you are responsible for. And I
can appreciate the, your consideration. Who has that assignment now? A Clerk III, the
Deputy Director? Under your direction, Mr. Director, who have you or who has the
assignment now of those leases and assets that we are either responsible for or are
utilizing someone else's assets?
MR. YOUNG: Yes, Mr. Hokama, operationally, the Department of Finance basically has spread
out this requirement, that the Charter requirement, the Code requirements between the
Deputy Director of Finance, myself, the Director, and the, and, and an Administrative
Assistant. We triple team this function only because no single one of us actually has the
time nor the specific skills and experience in terms of property management. So there are
areas, severe areas of I would say Jacking. And right now the function is pretty much
relegated to that of a just essentially a tracker or a tickler of when leases expire or review
of the leases on an as-needed basis. There is nobody that actually is constantly going
through and reviewing the leases. That is where the detriment that I feel that we're short
on.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And I believe you have responded to this Committee or the Council
with, I believe, an inventory of the various types of leases and grants that your
Department administers currently. So we're well aware there is a lot.
Is there a opportunity--I don't know how to put it but, you know, I would like to
hopefully down the road see us consider a percentage of concession fees and lease
payments to help pay for this Asset Management Program whereby it supports itself and
the good management helps, will help pay for its cost. Is that something you are open to,
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Mr. Director? Because I see us being able to generate more revenue if we take care our
concessions and do it a lot better than we currently are.
MR. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. I appreciate you asking me that question because that
is something that I personally would like to see and I think that that would be beneficial
to the County. This singular position is by no means the be all end all for what the
County requires. Given the hundreds of millions of dollars of County assets or of real
property asset that the County has under its ownership, a solid property management
structure is indeed warranted. And whatever method by which the Councilor the
Administration can fund such a program, I think it's, it would be in well regards that we
should consider that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And just to let you know, you know, I am looking to be very
supportive of this because we have made some major decisions, particularly purchasing
of some property in Lahaina whereby part of the debt service was to be paid from
concession revenue. And I don't know where we are specifically on that point and that
is another meeting at another time. But I can see how this can develop to take care of
some of those what I would call requirements as Council has based its decisions on that
needs to be implemented and follow through with, so thank you for your comments.
MR. YOUNG: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Any further questions? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TA V ARES: Yes, thank you. In your description, you said that this
person would also have a function of coordinating the disposition or acquisition of
County property. And I recall that some years back there was a person in Public Works
that was most handling acquisition of rights of way and stuff like that. So do you know if
that position still exists or would this be not something that this person would do? I
mean, is there a way we can combine those, both of those responsibilities with your
position and the one that Public Works used to have, and I don't know if they have it.
The person is not there anymore, but I don't know if the position still is.
MR. YOUNG: Thank you, Ms. Tavares. I believe the position does still exist in Public Works,
and I believe there is a person that currently does that. That person's responsibilities are
limited to easements in rights of way relative to roadways.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Are you talk ... , are you referring to Allen?
MR. YOUNG: I believe that is ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Watanabe?
MR. YOUNG: I believe that is ...
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COUNCILMEMBER TA V ARES: Okay, this was another person that used to work with Allen
whose responsibility was the legal paperwork. I think Liz was her name, but I can't
remember her last name. And she worked with Allen Watanabe in that section.
MR. YOUNG: Jim Chisholm, I believe.
COUNCILMEMBER TA V ARES: Is there now?
MR. YOUNG: Yeah. Anyway, this position that I propose goes beyond and fills the gap in
terms of acquisitions and dispositions that the Public Works position does not provide.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, okay.
MR. YOUNG: For instance, there are a number of properties or road remnants or County
remnant parcels that the County could dispose of. They do not fall under the purview of
Public Works. And it is under the purview of the Finance Department to dispose of them.
Similarly, these other land acquisitions that have currently taken of note, the Finance
Department has, has had to essentially do work on acquisitions, but it's kind of, there's
nobody that specifically has that background experience. And so that's where this
position would fill in.
COUNCILMEMBER T A V ARES: So will this be like a central coordinating agency as far as
like I think Department of Housing and Human Concerns and the Parks Department has a
lot of ... a number of leases and they grant or through them have granted licenses and
leases to various people? So would we have this person, this position that coordinate
with the departments that have this certain function?
MR. YOUNG: Yes. Yes, exactly, Ms. Tavares. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Okay.
MR. YOUNG: We're not looking to take away their responsibilities or the jurisdiction of any of
the departments that they, where they currently provide the function. This position
provides a little bit more complement, complementary skills to those departments to help
them better manage their leases, as well as providing a larger oversight.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Further questions on this particular item? Chair has a question. So
currently, the Grant Managing departments, as well as the Finance Department are taking
care of this duty? Is that correct, Mr. ...
MR. YOUNG: Mr. Chair, essentially, yes.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay.
MR. YOUNG: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: So there's not going to be a displacement of, of work. In other words, this
person is not going to replace. It just enhances or provides more efficiency in the
management of it?
MR. YOUNG: I look at this position as being able to develop efficiencies in the management of
the leases. Develop what I feel currently does not exist. The level of efficiency I feel is
insufficient for the County's management of its assets.
CHAIR KANE: Is there some shortfall in any particular area besides the Finance Department
that, that has compelled you to ask for this position? What's been the main driver? I
mean, if in the departments, are they not able to provide reports to the Finance
Department on the on-going status of each of their leases? The responsible departments
that you've mentioned?
MR. YOUNG: Mr. Chair, on occasion, when the questions have come up from this Council on
specific leases regarding performance measures, lease expirations, why they have not
been essentially re-bid or extended as such, and then a review of the lease is undertaken
by the Department of Finance, we disc ... , we've discovered on a number of occasions that
there has been, no one has essentially followed up or monitored the leases. I can think of
one occasion that comes to mind very clearly regarding a request to extend a grant of a
lease for a County property that this body had deliberated on. The lease had expired two
years prior. And the department, the responsible department did not undergo the process
to either get the grant extended, get the grant renewed and no one was aware of it
essentially for two years. And this body was, did make a point to mention that there was
not adequate management of this type of leases on this one occasion. I would say that
there, in my brief tenure here in the County, I've also noticed an occasion where there has
been this level of risk in other leases of County properties as well. And that's why this
position I feel will help fill that void. I don't think there's any deliberate points on the
individual departments or the Department of Finance to purposefully mismanage leases.
It's just that there are a lot of leases out there. There's a lot of County property that's
being leased, and there's not adequate staff that's dedicated to following up on it. So
that's why this position I feel will give that level of support.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you for your response, Director. Members, any further questions?
If not the Chair will move forward. Director, Safety Specialist, please.
MR. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The Department's requesting an expansion position of a
Safety Specialist for its Risk Management Division. This position is sought in order to
further complement a safety program that has an overall goal of educating the entire
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County workforce, as well as developing a safety program that will have as its goal to
improve employee safety, reduce work place injuries and financially reduce associated
Workers' Compensation cost that the Department and the County has had to face
annually.
This is just a singular position located in the Risk Management Division, and we look at
it as being a complementary position to work with other Safety Officer positions and
other functions located in individual departments that have a operational or functional
purpose of promoting safety within the County. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Questions, Members, on this position? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chair. Mr. Young, just again, who would be
doing I guess the work of the Safety Specialist as it is right now? Is there anyone in
particular?
MR. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Mr. Gary Gates, the Divisional Manager from, for Risk
Management for the County, is here, and he can elaborate more specifically on
operational requirements. Mr. Gates.
MR. GATES: Good afternoon, Mr. Molina. Nobody in the Risk Management Division
currently is performing the functions of the Safety Specialist 1. We have a Loss Control
Specialist, and, yes, to some extent the duties overlap and so the Loss Control Specialist
does perform some of the functions that a Safety Specialist would. But the request for
this particular position is a bit more focused on developing the safety program
Countywide.
MR. MOLINA: All right. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. Last week we had the Public Works
Department reveal their expansion request, and one of the positions that they requested
for was the person that will do the safety training in that Department. And after some
discussion, you know, we were looking at the possibility of having, you know, some
personnel dedicated to the risk management area to handle all the safety training. It's not
only materials that you read in regards to being safe at work, but also the driver
education, things of that nature.
And three of the departments that come to mind is the Public Works, the Parks, as well as
the Water Department. And, you know, rather than have each department having their
own safety officer that you be the focal as far as trying to do the, you know, the, the
safety training for this County. Can I have your comments on that?
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MR. GATES: Yes. Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. With the number of work place injuries that this
County incurs annually and the associated cost for Workers' Compensation, I believe that
we can't have too many safety officers or safety representatives. The reason being that,
with just under 2,500 total employees right now if we look across the County and we take
a look at the safety program, if you will, or safety representatives or specialists or officers
within each department, you may find a hit and miss. Okay. You might, you won't have,
as I understand there's one dedicated Safety Officer in Public Works, but for the other
departments, we don't have those positions created, so you may have a representative or
somebody tasked with safety issues. But this goes to the unorganized safety tree, as I call
it. I think that Countywide, if we had a safety tree developed with each department to
division to section and there were safety representatives or officers within each of those
departments coordinating with Risk Management, I think that we're going to see our
work place injuries and associated costs reduced in a shorter period of time than if we, if
we don't fill these safety positions sooner than later.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So what I'm hearing that as far as the department having
their own safety personnel to handle the, I guess ... training and the follow-ups on
workman compensa ... , Workman Compo type injuries would be the best in regards to
rather than having a separate department that handles all of those things which would
make it more consistent in regards to the training for all personnel.
MR. GATES: That's a excellent point, excellent question. I do believe that would be the best
functioning form of safety program, would be to have Risk Management and a Safety
Specialist within Risk Management--one for now, maybe more in the future--to have
other Safety Specialists specific to departments to work with so that it's a complement to
that position. And, therefore, it's a level of accountability across the County that we can
achieve. I think to separate it, put 'em all into Risk Management or none in Risk
Management and all of them in the department, I think that's a lack of coordination. So I
think if Risk Management could, over time, have that level of coordination and
complement the departments, I think we're going to see results a lot sooner.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you for that comment. And, Chair, if we could
send a letter to the Administration in regards to, or doing a study and the possibility of,
you know, creating a some kind of a department to handle the safety issues for this
County -- meaning training, updating of records, you know, things of that nature ...
more consistent within the County itself.
CHAIR KANE: And, Mr. Pontanilla, the Chair apologizes. If you can restate what you'd like
requested because I thought I heard you say the creation of a department or a study. Can
you clarify please?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. Because we're in a budget session, maybe for the
following year, that Risk Management work with the various department in trying to
create something that, in regards to safety, this sort of being more consistent in the type
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of training that we provide our employees in the County. And, for me, you know, I
would like to see a safety department handling all safety training for the County of Maui.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Or a division.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. Staff, you got that question? Thank you. Further questions?
Ms. Tavares followed by Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER T AV ARES: Yeah, thank you. I think the, I took a little bit different
approach when this came up before in the meeting, and I think it was with the Water
Department that we were having discussion and felt that we should be looking at our
safety program as a whole for covering the entire County of Maui, then pinpointing or
start to single out by the greatest demand which departments need to have their safety
stuff beefed up. And I think, you know, looking at what's the feasibility of having a
safety officer in each of the big departments to the ones that Mr. Pontanilla noted for
starters. I think also that we can look at private industry to see how their tree is set up for
safety, and it is, you know, it is critical and I don't know, have you had the opportunity to
look at or you came from the private sector so do you have any ideas on, of what would
be a good model to follow or you have a company? Even like your company before.
Mr. Pontanilla probably had a pretty good safety program because you did a lot of pole
climbing, huh. And Maui Electric, where you have some high-risk activity similar to
what we have here. Have you looked at any of those?
MR. GATES: Yeah, that's the model that I'm attempting to describe, is to have the safety
program focused in Risk Management, with a safety representative responsible for each
department. Right now, the majority of our injuries are happening in what we call the
Big Five. The five departments with the most employees and the highest risks. And we
do, Risk Management does coordinate the most training for County employees, but you
can imagine all the kinds of jobs that are being performed out there all carry their own,
their own risks, their own type of injuries. And so for Risk Management, what drives the
safety topics, if you will for us, will be where the injuries are occurring and what's
causing them. And so those are the trainings that we begin with. At this point, our
approach is to have the departments have on-going safety meetings and safe, on safety
topics--general safety topics, specific safety topics--to their particular duties. But what
I'm seeing is a lack of, a lack of that in each department because there aren't in,
representatives within the department to drive that.
So then it becomes Risk
Management's responsibility to do that for the department. You can imagine how
overwhelming that is. So that's the structure that I'm trying to create, is driving the
safety program from Risk Management, but having departments within themselves also
having a functioning safety program.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I just want to follow up on what the other Members, Mr. Chairman,
have initiated. And I think it's great that we, you look at the private sector. I come from
private sector operations, and I think you're right. There needs to be a organized
program because whether you're out there working with heavy equipment--I mean we're
all aware of the type of claims that come in. From injuries from equipment, heavy
equipment to carpal tunnel claims, working with computers, I mean there's the whole
gamut.
So we understand what you're saying regarding training and safety
programs ... (CHANGE TAPE) . . . My question is, have you completed an, an
assessment, Countywide, or you planning to do one complete assessment? Your
thoughts, Mr. Gates?
MR. GATES: Mr. Hokama, a assessment on, on safety?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And, you know, what would be your, your, the various choices you
would give us as councilors regarding funding and authorization of whether it be
personnel, consideration of a third party ... I don't even if OSHA does free assessments
to, for the County, if we call them in to just give us a general assessment and whereby
they might say it might be best to have operationally the person in all the departments or
they might say centralize it, have one coordinate it. The Risk Manager shall be the top of
the structure. Everything will flow. Everything will be consistent. Have you done ...
MR. GATES: We have not, we have not conducted a comprehensive assessment to date,
although we do have plans in the next three months to have a risk management consultant
come in and a component of that assessment being the safety program. So that is a, that
is part of our plan.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And I, and I think the Members were right on the button this
afternoon, Mr. Gates, because when we questioned Water Department, because they are
asking for a safety officer. I guess part of our questioning was, how does it relate to the
overall County safety program? And while I can appreciate they are more concerned of
their specific department and it's their specific request, I hope it's in coordination with
your efforts and that you're aware of what the departments are doing regarding their
safety programs. Or is this an independently advanced request?
MR. GATES: No, I am aware that not only the Water Department, but other departments as well
will be or have requested safety officers or representatives. And it is not, I wouldn't, I
can't represent that is in complete coordination with Risk Management, but through Risk
Management Steering Committee meetings with the departments, I'm well aware of the
lack of safety organization within each department and that is my approach to creating
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the structure to have safety representatives for each department coordinating with Risk
Management.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Has our third party administrator given you any comments regarding
this, moving forward with this initiative? Good idea, bad idea, we're going to work
ourselves out of a job, which I don't have a problem with for the third party people,
but ...
MR. GATES: Yeah, it would be nice. No, Mr. Hokama, I have not sought the input or nor did
they volunteer the input from our third party administrator. However, our insurance
brokers and Risk Services, we employ--I shouldn't say employ--we have a safety trainer
from _ _ come over regularly and conduct certain types of training again where we
feel the focus point should be. And he's indicated that this is definitely the direction that
we want to take.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: If you can answer this, I would appreciate it. If you cannot for
whatever, if it's proprietary or what not, but has this ever been to your knowledge a
collective bargaining issue? Safety and training?
MR. GATES: Not to my knowledge.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much.
MR. GATES: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. Any further questions? Chair has one question, then we'll go
ahead and move on, Members. And if, again, if there's, I'll try to keep us on track and
just one second. I know Ms. Morrison would like to be recognized. I know in the
example, you folks provide last year's, last fiscal year's Workers' Compensation cost and
the average . .. Instead of answering, maybe I'll just have the question, a written
question for staff but just be prepared to respond. If you can provide us the trend, since
you've come on, Mr. Gates, and maybe even before that, if we already see a marked
improvement, or has it been going the other way. And I think we need to see at least on a
graph over a period of time versus just one day as showing of an example. So no need to
respond now because I know we're pressed for time, but, Staff, if you can, please provide
that question for a response from the Finance Department.
Ms. Morrison, I know you had a comment, please.
MS. MORRISON: Yes, thank you, Mr. Chair. The other point that you may want to keep in
your, back of your minds when you're looking at departments having safety officers
versus a centralized or some hybrid is in the case of Water, for example, that's a special
revenue. And the source of funds to pay that position comes out of that particular
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revenue source, and while that shouldn't drive, totally drive the decision, it is an element
to consider. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, thank you for your comment. Thank you. It's an important piece of
information for us to consider. Okay, Members, any further questions? If you can,
please and, Mr. Hokama, go ahead.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Real quick, Chairman, since the Budget Director brought up a very
valid point. So claims regarding the Water Department comes from water revenue? The
payment of the claims, and not from general fund?
MR. GATES: That's correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Then that's a fair request, Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. DMV positions, Director.
MR. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The largest portion of the expansion positions requested
by Department of Finance is located in our Division of Motor Vehicles and Licensing.
As you know, the, this is probably one of the most significant areas for your, for each
Members' constituencies, has been scrutinized as of late probably ever since the County
has undertaken this function.
The current DMVL structure has a centralized location at the Kahului Service Center
located at the Maui Mall. It also maintains satellite locations in Kihei, Lahaina, formerly
a location in Upcountry Makawao--which we are, by the way, currently looking to fill
some place in Upcountry--as well as locations on Lanai and Molokai. Assessment of the
DMVL function reveals that there is greater demand than capacity. These positions, the
seven requested to be County funded as well as the four that are requested to be State
grant funded, seeks to get to added capacity. For the County-funded positions, we are
seeking four Service Representative, four Service Representatives, two Road Examiners
and one back office File Clerk. For the Members' knowledge, the four State-funded
positions will include two Service Representatives, and one File Clerk, and one Service
Representative fiscal, the last two being back office operations.
These positions will go directly to build in capacity and to add to services. We have, we
are proud that we are focusing on added expansion that will get to greater emphasis on
the satellite offices. I neglected to mention Hana as a satellite office, but we do have an
office there, and one of the expansion positions will go directly to Hana.
For the Members' benefit, I also have with me Mr. Lito Vila. He's the DMVL Manager
and can speak to the direct operational requirements for each of these positions. Thank
you, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, Mr. Molina followed by Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chairman. Mr. Director, my question will
focus on the Makawao DMVL office. As you stated earlier, the office closed because of
the lease termination. Do you, how many staff occupy the Makawao office, and can you
give us an idea or a timetable of when you're looking at the, I guess, a future office will
open in Upcountry? I know the Hannibal Tavares Center has been talked about or has
been considered.
MR. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Molina. I'd like to give Mr. Lito the opportunity to give you the
good news. But before I do, I'd like to also point out to the Members that in the
Appendix is a number of statistics that outlines the level of demand that is out there for
vehicle registration and why a lot of your constituencies call in to provide updates on
how, how long they've had to wait in line at the Service Center.
I believe the Makawao location had two employees just as the Kihei and Lahaina
satellites do. This expansion program seeks to increase the level of serv ... , of staff at all
of those satellite locations. Mr. Vila.
MR. VILA: Thank you, Mr. Young. Good afternoon, Mr. Molina, Council Members, Mr.
Chair. Yes, Mr. Young is correct. The Makawao office has a working supervisor, a
Service Rep. III and one Service Rep. II. And the latest news on the relocation, we are
still working very aggressively at trying to put and open up a satellite office. We've been
working ... Public Works who has agreed to loan us a trailer up until probably December
or so when they anticipate needing it at the temporary location. It's a 12-foot by 34-foot
trailer. Rather small but we're committed to making it operational. They won't be that
comfortable for the customers coming in because I do have a lot of equipment. And if
everything goes through, I'm hoping that I, with the connectivity and everything with
MIS and Mayor's Office support and everybody's support, hopefully we'll be able to
open it probably some time in May_
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And currently the two staff members from Makawao have
been reassigned back to Kahului for now?
MR. VILA: That is correct. And one of the staff members also continues to provide twice a
week coverage for our Lanai office, which we're training a brand new employee that just
started Monday.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Chair, if I can continue. Getting off of Makawao, the
performance measure that will, you know, basically allow the Department to monitor the
effectiveness. I mean, you folks, I presume, with these expansion positions will have
some type of, I guess, monitoring devices to see the effectiveness of these new expansion
positions because a lot of the concern from the community has been the, you know, the
long wait in lines and how do we sometimes, you know, adding more bodies do not
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always necessarily equate to more effectiveness. What is the Department going to use to
measure the effectiveness of these people?
MR. VILA: Well, basically, as you note, I am increasing my Fiscal section. That actually will
be assisting me in monitoring the number of transactions, statistics, as well as the much
needed checking to look at the transaction data to ensure that everything is prim and
proper at those locations. So we have driver licensing transactions, we have motor
vehicle statistical transactions, we have our cashiering system that can monitor the
amounts of transactions that are occurring even though we don't have a complicated __
system up there that can tell me how many customers pull the number and how long
they've been waiting. That may be a possibility in the future if it's needed; however, we
do have enough statistical information that's available from our present systems to give
us good data. However, we need to commit to having the staff to also track that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. One final question, Chair. And you guys are offering,
in terms of training, any types of incentives to I guess encourage the personnel to reduce
the wait time? I mean anything you guys can offer the, your personnel?
MR. VILA: We have offered our personnel, all of the Division staff, as you noticed, note,
beginning part of this year, I did request, I've got support to stop the office for one full
day to provide customer service training. I felt that was very important. It's gone a long
way. It has since become a standard. All new employees coming in will be going
through that. Additional incentives, I don't know what else we could put out; however,
the greatest incentive my staff could receive is the influx of additional manpower because
they are the ones that face the customer there that has been waiting the two to three hours
and have to try to service them for a transaction that's going to take 10 to 12 minutes on
the average.
MR. YOUNG: Also, Mr. Molina, I'd like to add that one of the performance measures, Activity,
Activity ID, or lC rather does identify the wait time which we target, and that is 45
minutes. I'm sure most of your constituents have made you aware that when they go
down to the Service Center, they'll let you know when they're waiting longer than 45
minutes. In fact, on occasion, more than occasion, the wait time has been ballooned up to
about two hours. And this is primarily due to a large influx of walk-in traffic, which the
Department has tried to undertake measures to encourage transactions that do not need
physical presence at the Service Center. But just as a, you could do on-line banking and
people will still go into a bank branch, it is the prerogative of the public. So as long as
the public intends to maintain physical attendance at the Service Center, it's incumbent
upon the Department to seek methods to provide more capacity. And we'd like to keep
this, this performance measure of about 45 minutes in the average customer wait time.
Although that may not seem very short for the public, if you reviewed the operations at
the Service Center, you will realize that that's quite an aggressive time to get the wait
time down to 45 minutes.
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The number of positions that the Division and the Department are requesting is going
directly to provide more capacity so that we can get the wait time and at the same time
provide adequate level of service for members of the public that walk, that choose to
walk in.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you very much for that bit of good news as it relates to
Makawao and I noted, I note in the news, I guess Oahu is trying the reservation system or
they're going to experiment, I believe, it relates to drivers licensing. So I know you folks
have to be creative to address the concerns here, so, anyway, thank you. Thank you,
Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you. I think last year or the year before we had asked
the Finance Department to figure out what the actual cost to provide services was. Have
you had an opportunity to do that? For this, for this Division?
MR. VILA: If I may, I believe I recall that question and my answer at that time was, we did not
have, we do not do a cost-per-service type of analysis. We could do that. We could put it
together; however ... to answer your question, no, we have not done that yet.
COUNCILMEMBER T AV ARES: I know you had your hands full with just trying ...
MR. VILA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TA V ARES: . . . everything going and get people trained and then
listening to all the complaints, but I think one of the things we talked about was it's a cost
per, you know, the cost of service, providing the service and that the fees should be
covering that cost, as number one budgetary concerns I think are interesting. The other
question is, how difficult would it be for you to put together sort of a chart or a graph that
would show how many people were processed through DMV when it was at War
Memorial and how many are being processed now and is the number increasing? Do we
have an increasing number of registered vehicles, license drivers, those kinds of things? I
think that when we talk about adding personnel, you need to have that as part of the
justification. In other words, the increased workload.
MR. VILA: To answer one part of your question right off, no, we do not have any statistics
other than probably licensing renewals transactions, registered motor vehicle because the
two divisions were split. Everything was manual. We had no, no way of counting how
many people were waiting in line at a point in time or how long they've waited.
We've ...
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... War Memorial.
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MR. VILA: ... back at War Memorial. Now we have better statistics; however, in the handout
that Mr. Young gave to the Members, we have the various statistics that will show the
growth per island on the motor vehicle registered over several fiscal years. Keep in mind
that these are just the base, the majority of the transactions are driving licensing related
transactions and motor vehicle related transactions. We also issue a lot of other, perform
a lot of, lot of other transactions. For example, ocean rec., business licenses, taxi cab,
disabled parking placard, dog licenses, bicycle licenses, scrap metal dealer licenses. A
whole bunch. Bicycle tour business licenses ... (inaudible) ... most of it are at the
Service Center; however, we do get a lot of inquiries. So this is just the tip of the iceberg
of the total number of transactions. Of the 110,000 customers entering the DMV for the
DMV and related services, a lot of those people are customers perform multiple
transactions at a window. I haven't gone in and counted how many various types of
transactions. For example, if you come in to renew your registration, it's six months
before your license expire, you may want to renew your license, driver license, as well as
renew your motor vehicle registration at the same time. So that's one customer, that's
two different transactions performed by the same person.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Yeah, thank you. I didn't turn over the sheet and
look at the next page again to see what those statistics were. You have a figure for '05
that year-to-date, February. Inclusive of February. Are you on track for being in excess
of ...
MR. VILA: I believe ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... '04?
MR. VILA: Yeah, if I extrapolated that correctly, we should be at around 134,000 or so
registered vehicle because that's what February ... that's eight months out of the 12, you
straight line it and project it out.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.
MR. VILA: It should be within the, in excess of 130,000 registered motor vehicles. This does
not count the number of transactions that we have, notices of transfer . . . all of the
miscellaneous transactions that we perform on a daily basis.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, how ... I'm sorry, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER T A V ARES: How are you, or are you handling those people who come to
the window that don't have to be there? That they could have done it with a stamp,
thirty-seven cents, U.S. mail.
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MR. VILA: As Mr. Young said, we, I tell myself, don't belittle them. They have waited
sometimes in excess of three hours. Let's get them in and get them out. However, for
those of you that have come into the Service Center recently, I have installed a work
station at the service counter, next to the ticket dispenser. My intent there is upon having
all of my staff trained, I want a station, a personnel out there to assist customers that walk
in. I've done pilots and I've stood out there myself. In about half an hour time, I've
probably turned away a good six or seven people because they're in the wrong facility.
You screen their documents, they don't have it. They don't, they don't have to stand in
line because there's no sense waiting two hours, but I need the staff to commit to that,
and when we get to staff diversion or transaction diversion that I'm really for that, away
from walk-ins. We also get motor ... on-line motor vehicle registration. I plan to put
terminals out there and that person will then be able to say, hey, you want to, you want
me to show you how to register your vehicle on-line. Show 'em so that next year they
don't have to come in. I think for the DMV we need to focus on and put more emphasis
on the customers that should be coming in to do its complicated transactions. Not the
straightforward type of vehicle registrations; however, if the customer walk in, we have
no choice. We have to service them.
MR. YOUNG: And, Ms. Tavares, if I could add to that. To answer your question a little
different perspective. I personally reviewed the wait times at the Service Center by going
down there regularly on a number of days in the course of the week since I've been on
board. What I've noticed is that this performance measure of 45 minutes is actually
rather aggressive but doable during the, what I would consider to be normal operational
periods of the month. There are periods in the month that the wait time balloons up to
two, three hours, and that is the first three to five days of the month, the last five to ten
days of the month, and on occasion the middle of the month. Now, the reason why it
balloons up at the beginning, at the end of the month is because people procrastinate on
renewing their vehicle registration and then they cannot afford to mail it in. So these are
the transactions that basically fill up the _ _ . These are people that, if they had mailed
it in earlier, they would not have had to go to the Service Center, and I would be willing
to say that these are the people that are calling your offices to complain about the long
wait time.
So if we look at where we need to put staff, we still need the staff in order to get the wait
time below 45 minutes, even on the normal course of the period, during the non-busy
time. But it is everybody's right to go into the Service Center, even if they don't want to
mail it. And so those are the times when the wait times balloon up to two to three hours,
and those are the times where it's most critical that we have additional capacity. And I
think that, I hope that provides a little bit more insight into your question.
COUNCILMEMBER TA V ARES: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Mateo followed by Mr. Hokama.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. And, Mr. Director, thank
you. And just to follow up on your last comment, perhaps part of the consideration in the
location of the Service Center encourages people, because it's in a shopping mall. It
encourages people, whether they're doing a manini type of business of not to come in
because it's convenient, it's there, and it's a service center. So that kind of consideration,
I just wanted to bounce off you. However, to follow up on the positions, I believe
Member Molina mentioned the fact that, you know, sometimes it's not throwing the
positions, you know, to deal with the complaints. And with these positions, I'd like to
ask just two real brief questions. One, are these new bodies going to be cross-trained so
they're able to do the back and the front service so that a window is not left open when
someone goes on break? And the other follow up question would be, you know, you
don't have the, you don't have enough windows now. So, you know, how are you going
to address, you know, like the use of these bodies when there's not enough counters?
MR. VILA: If I may. I believe the first question was cross-training. Yes, when we organized,
the Service Rep. lIs, those are the staff that provide the direct face-to-face transactions.
Service Rep. lIs are those employees at the call center, financial responsibility, fiscal, as
well as the service counters. Those, by position description which we worked on over the
past several years, is all reassignable to other areas on temporary or a prolonged basis as
operational needs dictate. The problem now is even though I can move them, I can't
because I have, I need them at where they're at, and I know the Council really frowns
upon ... on a disposition I'm using them in this capacity. But for the DMV, which really
depends on how the customer flows in that, you have to adjust your daily operation to be
able to service all the people that are coming in for the different types of customers. So,
yes, they will be cross-trained. In addition, you have for your info, we have preserved the
possibility with these position descriptions on variations in future hours that we may want
to look into. I've heard couple years, 1, couple years ago when I was first up here for
positions, what about four hour, four-day work week, ten-hour days, working on
Saturdays? So as vacancies came up and as you folks approve those new positions, I
have attached those other conditions to those positions that we want to maintain the
viability of the Service Center to be able to deliver the services that the County must
deliver to the customers.
MR. YOUNG: Also, Mr. Mateo, could I also add to that? If you refer to Table 5 on the
Appendix, you'll see that the majority of the positions that we're requesting, they are line
positions, meaning that they are directly customer service positions. But the, the handful
of them, the, you know, a good portion of them are actually in our satellite locations.
And that's where we, we're looking at this, this strategic shift that Mr. Vilo [sic], Vila
and I are looking at, is that the service delivery is to, as you say, yeah, we want to get
people away from the Service Center and Maui Mall. We want to build up the satellites,
so that's where we want to increase capacity. When you folks deliberate the Finance
Department's budget, you will see that the only Capital Improvement Project that the
Finance Department is requesting are for four office trailers that will, that are specifically
for DMVL so that we can get the DMVL function out of third party where the County is
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renting property. That was the situation that arrived in, arised in Makawao. Because the
County was renting from a private landowner, we basically at risk when they did not
want to renew our lease. Well, we want to increase a larger serv ... , a satellite location on
County property at, in Upcountry as well as the same thing in Kihei because in Kihei we
are again at risk. So we want a larger location. With the larger location, comes larger
capacity for us to have added staff. So this is the strategy that we want to use. I do agree
that the Service Center, because its proximity in Maui Mall, it's centralized, we put it out
there as a Service Center, encourages people to go there. Still yet we want to provide
better service by reducing the time and getting to increased capacity at the satellites I feel
is one way to do that. Thank you.
MR. VILA: And it ...
CHAIR KANE: Go ahead.
MR. VILA: And if I may add to that, you asked about the number of windows. With the
request, I believe I put in for to, to build ... $25,000 for two more service windows at the
Service Center. I believe I can fit two more there because on these personnel expansions,
if you'll note that the Driver License Examiners and two support clerks is for a central
road testing facility that's going to be relocated from the Service Center to get those
people that don't need to be there at, back at the War Memorial Stadium where our CDL
courses are, our parallel parking, motorcycle course and put them there and administer
the test from there. And by having a better facility there, once the applicant passes the
road test, they'll walk away with their plastic license away from our facility instead of
going back to the Service Center. And with the examiners relocating back to that central
road testing facility, that'll free up some congestion within the Service Center.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman. My ... would be on the road examiners,
specific to the island of Lanai ... (CHANGE TAPE) ... I note in your comments to us,
Mr. Director, that as of this month, there are over 5,000 outstanding permits in the
County, which I would assume would convert to potentially 5,000 driver's licenses.
MR. VILA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: For Lanai, I know you have been trying to address the need of our
requirements, and I know your difficulties. But, nonetheless, I get the calls. So I hope
you can appreciate my situation also.
MR. VILA: Definitely.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I would ask, you know, and, you know, I think, Lito, Mr. Vila is
very aware of Lanai. But, you know, we do have a recently retired CD, Commercial
Driver ... CDL instructor/driver on the island who, you know, was made aware to me.
And he says, you know, if the County would like, I am willing to work on a contract to
provide some service to my community, our Lanai community, in assisting road
examinations. And, again, I say that he is a instructor, CDL instructor. So, obviously,
he's got the qualifications. He has a certification. He has the papers. And we're well
aware of the amount of time it takes to get our people from Maui to Lanai, especially by
air transportation. Now, I go through that weekly, and it is a bear. Round trip, five
hours. That means on an eight-hour day, your examiner has only three hours to provide
service on Lanai. Not acceptable for the employee or the community. So, in the
meantime, until we get squared away with your, your revised program, Mr. Director, I
would hope that ... and I will, you know, if need be, I will go and ask my colleagues and
I'll lobby them hard for some monies to allow you that option on Lanai to get an island
resident that can provide eight hours a day road examination until such time we can get it
cleared up. And if we gotta go see the union and have them explain to them that this is
one way to address a need and that in no way is it to replace a collective bargaining
position, but to buy us for a short-term solution an option, which I consider very viable, I
hope you will consider that. Is that, is that a, a viable option in your mind, Mr. Director?
MR. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. I wouldn't know all the details, what is required. This
suggestion has come up from the Administration as well in terms of allowing private, you
know, instructors basically to allow to provide the test. I believe DMVL has, either has
done that in the past or has explored that possibility. I'm not sure for whatever reasons
why we do not currently do that. I believe there may be some limitations in terms of
some contracting arrangements. I don't know if there's IRS implications. Other matters
that are beyond what I consider to be just purely on the DMVL. But, you know, I want
you to be assured that this particular matter for Molokai as well as for Lanai has come up
and the Division has looked at it and is, I believe is currently actually still looking at it
because the same discussion I actually had with the Managing Director's Office just last
week and it was communicated back to the Division just earlier this week.
Mr. Vila, would you like to add anything ...
MR. VILA: Yes, the state as a whole, Mr. Hokama, the City and County used to have third party
contracted examiner for CDL and that has been phased out. That has been discontinued.
Not to say that our third party examiners, we'll go down that path. The other
jurisdictions ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Vila, and, again, yeah, I'm sorry if I gave you the wrong impre ...
He's a CDL instructor, but I'm talking about more about just your regular automotive
relicensing or driver's testing. You know, they're not working on special 10,000 GVWs
type of equipment, you know. Just guys that need road test, they don't want their license
to expire, they don't want to be ticketed by a police officer because their license has gone

- 41 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 29, 2005

beyond the time, but trying to get compliance, trying to fit and work within your current
operational restrictions as far as Lanai is concerned with the minimal hours to get your
people on and off the island, I just would like you to look at it from that point. That this
is a short-term. It's not to be the permanent solution. We can get our people within the
legal expiration date of the current licenses to be able to get a renewal.
CHAIR KANE: Before you respond, okay, it's an important topic and so what I'll do is provide
Mr. Hokama the opportunity to, because it's something that seems to me more immediate
as far as the need right now, I would ask respectfully that that issue be taken up and either
a written response or talk story afterwards. The Chair has been very flexible today,
Members, and I'm watching the time as your Chair. We are already at ten to four. We're
getting off, getting off a little bit, off of the specific request for the expansions that are for
specific locales throughout the County. I understand, although Lanai is not here, Lanai
and Molokai is referenced in the discussion as far as enhancing the services and
providing more efficiency. So I recognize the importance and the relevance of the
question.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And, Chairman, if you will please, Chairman, and thank you for your
flexibility. I appreciate. But what I'm trying to do with tying in with the request is that if
we can take care of some of the Lanai concerns from Lanai with certified Lanai people,
these positions can help further alleviate the pressure on Maui because you don't have to
send the person to Lanai. You can keep that examiner on Maui on the expansion and take
care additional workload to decrease your outstanding permits. And that's how I was
trying to project. I'm sorry if it wasn't clear, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: No, so thank you.
MR. YOUNG: And thank you, Mr. Chair and Mr. Hokama. Mr. Vila and I are very appreciative
to your indulgence today, and we appreciate working with Mr. Hokama and his office
because we recognize that, you know, we, Lanai is unique from any of the other
locations, Molokai included, in that we have a difficult time in delivering services there.
And to the extent that Mr. Vila and I have been, you know, Mr. Hokama's office has tried
to help us to get along to increase our capacity there. So we are very open to any
discussions, any out-of-the-box solutions that can help us provide better services there.
So we are open. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions, Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Just one question. What is your turnover
rate at the DMV? If you do have any high turnovers?
MR. VILA: The latest termination I had was because my Customer Service Supervisor retired. I
have one more corning up at the end of this month who is retiring.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So pretty much your Department ...
MR. VILA: I'm happy to say that once the staff comes on board, they're there for quite a while.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So stable workforce?
MR. VILA: Very stable.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions? Chair just has one line, but other than that,
I'd like to yield to any Member who has additional questions for the total of nine
positions in this area, including the four State-funded positions.
One would suggest that it's not adding more bodies to increase the capacity, but one
would suggest that there may be a flaw in the system itself. Can you comment on that
and let me be more specific. When we were down at War Memorial, the reason it
seemed like what was driving the initial restructure or change in my recollection was that
you had a lot of people in one line and nobody in another line. You didn't have the cross
training that Mr. Mateo talked about in his line of questioning. And that kind of drove a
switch to now having a multi-task or cross-trained personnel. But it seemed like the
unintended consequence of that is now you have people who have very simple
transactions who are waiting for a very long period of time because of the more complex
transactions being mixed in along with them. So it's almost like we've encountered
another negative because of the change.
Is the Department at all looking at a systemic tweak, so to speak, to address? And
because you folks use models, private sector models, one could use the model of the
express lane of, or a business transaction or a sin ... , one transaction, a single transaction
in a bank, where they have one line, one person dedicated to get people moving through
there on the simple transactions. Is that something has, that at least been considered?
And if not, is that something that you folks would consider in connection with ... and
your representative here to take on that type of responsibility?
MR. VILA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. To answer your question, when the rebuilt of the War
Memorial Stadium right beL., when the consultants did come in, there was a slow period
for driver licensing. We're back into the renewal cycle for four years. However, given
the transaction length, the reason our
system was programmed with the various
categories, which seems to be confusing, was exactly that. In order to impact, the
average waiting time, we need to move in the flow, the volume flow of the shorter
customers through the system first and get them out. For example, when we were at the
War Memorial gym, the dealer-type transactions, they had multiple vehicles ... we had
four windows open -- two or three of them would be at a window, and the whole line
would stop because they took 45 minutes to do their transactions. That's ... (inaudible) .
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.. Here at the Service Center line we are limiting the dealer transactions to one window
and in between transactions, they do pull from the other types of cue.
For example, disabled parking placards, we do put them at the front of the line. The
system allows us to do that. There's a lot of times they, they are in pain. In certain
condition, we want to get them in and out. Safety inspection stations that call in or fax in
their orders that's filled we put them at the front of the line because they're coming in for
one-minute transactions to pick up their stickers and pay and move out of there. So we
give them priorities. We can also do that for renewals of various types. However, in
doing those types of prioritizing the customer that's sitting there waiting and watching
the person that has come in after them may not understand, I was here first. How come
you're servicing that person first? So I'm thinking hopefully when I have the staff at the
Service desk in the lobby, we can help to augment that and explain to the customers. I
really want to test that out and have the people that the transactions that are quicker to be
processed. Those that don't need to be there, they have to wait a little longer so that the
people that have to come in for a transaction should be given priority. But then that's the
customer reaction that we're going to have to contend with.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, any additional questions? If ... okay, Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chairman. I have several more, but you
know what, I'm going to go ahead and submit 'em to your staff for a response from the
Department. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. And the Chair was just about to say if there are any further
questions at this time, the Chair would request that you put them in writing., submit 'em
to Staff, and we'll get those out to the Department for, for the responses. Director, thank
you very much for your time and providing your, your resource personnel to be here with
us this afternoon. Members, thank you very much. It's right before 4:00. We're
expected down at Kahului Community Center at 6:00, so has a couple of hours for you to
take care of your personal needs. And be prompt at the meeting tonight at 6:00, and we
expect a pretty good crowd this evening. With that, Mr. Vila, Mr. Gates, thank you very
much. Any additional comments, Mr. Morrison, before we close up this afternoon?
Hearing none, Ms. Fujita Villarosa, thank you for your presence this afternoon. We don't
take you for granted because you're always here with us. So, thank you very much.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (excused: MA)
ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.

CHAIR KANE: This meeting for March 29, 2005, is adjourned ... (gavel) . ..

ADJOURN:

3:58 p.m.
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